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During more than 85 years of existence in Miami
Beach this stately building housing the Bass
Museum of Art has always been a local icon and
center of community activity. Through the years in
both of its different occupancies, the building has
remained central to the community.

Originally designed and built as the Mlami Beach
Library in 1930 and designed by the Architect
Russell Pancoast, the building is located in the
local Museum Historic District which is part of the
City of Miami Beach Art Deco District which was
adopted and designated on June 20, 1990 by the
Miami Beach City Commission thru Ordinance
No. 90-2693 designating the Flamingo Park & the
Museum Historic Districts. (1)

The area surrounding the future Collins Park and
Bass Museum was one of the first platted and
settled areas on Miami Beach. "At the turn of the
(20th) century, the expanded district was part of
the coconut plantation owned by Esra Osborn
and Flnathan Field of Red Bank, New Jersey. In
the 1880's, Osborn and Field purchased a 65
mile strip of land along the ocean beginning at
the Lum Plantation (approximately 14th Street)
and extending north to present day Jupiter.
When the initial attempts at coconut farming
failed, John Styles Collins...bought out Osborn
for control of approximately 1675 acres of land
north of present day 14th Street, ocean to

bay.” (2)

Collins and Field then utilized the property for
the farming of avocados. In 1909 Field sold his
percentage to Collins making him sole owner of
the property. Carl Graham Fisher, millionaire
developer of the Indianapolis Speedway and
Prest-o-Lite Headlight Company had retired. to
Miami. It is said that Fisher had grown restless in
retirement and, in response to Shutts’ suggestion,
loaned Collins $50,000. He received, as a bonus
on the loan, 200 acres of Collins' land from
present day 14th Street to 19th Street, ocean to
bay. (3)
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HISTORY

THE BASS MUSEUM IS LOCATED WITHIN THE MUSEUM
HISTORIC DISTRICT, WHICH INCLUDES BOTH THE
‘CURRENT" AS WELL AS THE 'PROPOSED’ AS SHOWN
ABOVE IN THIS MAP DATED 1992 courtesy CITY OF MIAMI
BEACH HISTORIC PRESERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN
DEPARTMENT.
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fy-third 51 :
jevelopment showing
in background,

ABOVE: THE FUTURE COLLINS PARK AT LEFT CENTER (24)

The (Collins Park) district includes the
developments of Collins and Fisher, two of the
most important pioneer developers of Miami
Beach. The northern portion of the district was
first platted by Collins' Miami Beach
Improvement Company on February 10, 1916
(19th Street north to 27th Street (3)

Thomas J. -Pancoast, Collins' son-in-law, had
been Vice President and junior partner in the
Collins and Pancoast Company of Merchantville,
New Jersey. He first came to inspect the family
property in South Florida in 1911. (3)

In 1912, Pancoast, Irving Collins, and John Collins
formed the Miami Beach Improvement Company.
Irving Collins and Thomas Pancoast would also
be associated with Carl Fisher in the Miami Bay

Shore Company which constructed the City's
largest hotels on Biscayne Bay. The southern
portion of the expanded district was first platted
by Fisher's Alton Beach Realty Company on
January 15, 1914. (3)

The -first road through the expanded district was
Collins Avenue (originally known as Atlantic
Boulevard) (3)

The layout of blocks and streets remaining in the
expanded district is consistent with the original
developments, although some street names have
changed (ie. Cardinal Avenue became Park
Avenue, Sheridan became Liberty Avenue, Miami
Avenue became Washington Avenue, etc) . Land
use surrounding and within the district evolved as
development pressures increased from the

boom-time 1920's into the even more successful
1930's and 1940'. (4)

(€3]
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ABOVE: IN THE DISTANCE BEYOND THE FUTURE COLLINS
PARK THE 4-STORY BUILDING IS THE RIVIERA PLAZA
APARTMENTS at 20th & PARK AVENUE - CONSTRUCTED IN
1924. THE 2-STORY BUILDING IN FRONT IS THE

ANSONIA APARTMENTS ON 21st STREET. (24)

UPPER RIGHT: ANSONIA APARTMENTS 2012 PHOTOGRAPH
by ARTHUR MARCUS

LOWER RIGHT: RIVIERA PLAZA APARTMENTS 2012
PHOTOGRAPH by ARTHUR MARCUS
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“Development within the (Collins Park) district
was sparse at the end of the 1920's. The 1927
and 1929 photo aerials indicate the
concentration of Roney developments at 23rd
Street, development of the Miami Beach Bath
and Beach Club (later named the Riviera Bath
Club.), the houses on Collins Avenue, and the
Palm Court, the Riviera Plaza, the Fairbanks
Apartments and Garage (later named Fowler
Apartments, now named the Santa Barbara
Apartments) and the Ansonia Apartments. A
number of small schools were located in the
district. " (4)

ABOVE: LOOKING NORTH FROM THE RONEY PLAZA
HOTEL IN 1926 SHOWS AN EMPTY COLLINS PARK. (24)

RIGHT: VIEW OF RONEY PLAZA HOTEL FROM COLLINS
PARK - OPENED IN 1925 AND DEMOLISHED IN 1968.
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MIAMI BEACH PUBLIC LIBRARY

The Roney Plaza jump-started development in
the Collins Park neighborhood as seen in
the aerial photo at right taken in 1935. The
hotel immediately became the social center
of town. And once the Miami Beach Library
opened in 1930 the neighborhood was
beginning to rapidly develop. “Numerous
small hotels and apartment buildings,
designed in the Moderne style, were rapidly
built to attract the growing numbers of
middle class tourists. By 1935, the building
activity on Miami Beach surpassed that of
the boom periods of the 1920%. “ (5)

RIGHT: 1935 AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH COURTESY
HISTORY MIAMI SHOWS ONLY CENTRAL LIBRARY
SECTION BUILT IN 1930..

BELOW: 1931 DEDICATION CEREMONY FOR THE
MIAMI BEACH LIBRARY. NOTE THAT THE CENTRAL
SECTION HAD ONLY BEEN COMPLETED . (27)

8
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NIGHTCLUB & RESTAURANT DISTRICT

In addition to the hotel development typical of
Miami Beach in the 1930s, the nominated district
and adjacent streets developed as a nightclub/
restaurant district. More so than in other
neighborhoods within the National Register
District, independent (not associated with a hotel)
nightclubs and restaurants flourished along 23rd
Street, Liberty Avenue, 22nd Street, and Park
Avenue. At least ten (10) nightclubs and
restaurants appear on maps and plats through
the 1940s. (6)

BELOW: COLLINS PARK NEIGHBORHOOD - RESTAURANTS
AND NIGHTCLUB LOCATIONS 1930's - 1960's

Largely seasonal in population, the neighborhood
began to decline in the 1950s and 1960s as
tourist patterns changed and newer, larger hotels
and apartment buildings were constructed to the
north. Many restaurants closed and. nightclubs
converted to "adult” entertainment. (9)

Evolving into a lower cost neighborhood for
retirees, the neighborhood remained stable until
the 1970s and 1980s when increasingly poor and
more transient residents occupied the area. The
physical deterioration of buildings continued
through the 1980's until the reduced property
values combined with the availability of Federal
Investment tax credits attracted rehabilitation-
oriented developers. (9)
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COLLINS PARK

John Collins and the Miami Beach Improvement
Company deeded the land to the City of Miami
for Park purposes in 1913 (the City of Miami
Beach was not yet incorporated). During its
ownership , the City of Miami made some $1500
in property improvements. In April of 1920, citing
difficulties in maintaining a park outside its City
limits, Miami sold the property back to the Miami
Beach Improvement Company for $1, 000. Four
months later, the property was sold to the. City of
Miami Beach for $1. (6)

The original design of Collins Park was a
symmetrical arrangement of walks and hedges
with specimen trees place in informal groups.
Early photo aerials indicate the west portion of
the park was completed by 1927, the eastern
portion was not completed until the 1930's. By
1941, the eastern portion had been converted
from a park to a parking lot. The central walkway
which extended from the Library building, across
Collins Avenue to the beach remains. (7)

The central focus of Collins Park was the Miami
Beach Library and Art Center. The Library and Art
Center was first endorsed at the Miami Beach
Women's Club on June 8, 1927. Later, the Library
and Art Institute of Miami Beach and the
Chamber of Commerce proposed the building of
a library as a memorial to John Collins in the
park, and on April 2, 1930, the City Council
granted its permission. on July 31, 1930, the
deed giving the land to the city was amended to
allow the construction of a library and art center.
The structure was designed by Russell Pancoast,
who was a popular architect and grandson of
John Collins. (8)

2013 + 2015 PHOTOGRAPHS by ARTHUR MARCUS




BASS MUSEUM of ART

WESTERN WING OF BASS MUSEUM UNDER Art Deco. The earliest of the moderne styles,
CONSTRUCTION 1965 courtesy

constructed primarily between 1930 and 1936.
CITY OF MIAMI BEACH PHOTO ARCHIVES

The Art Deco structures incorporated classical
themes, such as Egyptian and Mayan, in a
modern context. The building forms are angular,

The center section of the structure opened in simpler than earlier Mediterranean Revival

1934 with 18,000 Volumes. In 1937, the south structures, with elaborate surface

wing was completed by Russell Pancoast, ornamentation.in the 1950's, newer and larger

architect as a donation from Mrs. Pancoast, Chair hotels were developed in areas north of the

of the Library Board, in memory of her father, district. This was the beginning of the resort

John Collins. The second floor art gallery was hotel, complete with numerous restaurants,

also constructed at this time. (8) nightclubs, shops, and private beaches. As these
new hotels drew tourists from southern Miami

In 1950, the north and west wings were added Beach, the nightclubs and restaurants closed or

to provide additional space, but by the end of were converted to other uses, and the hotels and

the decade, it was determined that a new library apartments changed to an older and poorer

was needed. (8) clientele. (8)
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In 1959, the electorate approved a $6 million
Bond issue which specified $600,000 for- a new
library. The old library building was to be used for
a Municipal Art Center. The new library was
opened (in front of the Museum) in 1962. (8)

In 1964, the Bass Museum of Art opened in the
old library building. The City had spent $160,000
in improvements to house the collection of John
and Johanna Bass. Mr. Bass was a 71 year old
retired sugar magnet. When asked why he
donated his collection to Miami Beach, he stated
that " ... Miami Beach has everything but culture,
it really needed it". (8)

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH circa 1965 SHOWING NEW LIBRARY
IN FRONT OF THE BASS MUSEUM of ART courtesy
CITY OF MIAMI BEACH PHOTO ARCHIVES.

Two parking lots were carved out of the eastern
end of the park but maintained the central axis.
In 1962 the park was further diminished when A,
Herbert Mathes's new library was built. The
postwar building, sited between the Russell
Pancoast building and Collins Avenue, turned its
back on the old Collins Library, destroying the
axial vista and unceremoniously isolating the
older building behind the blank service wall of
the new.” (25)
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TOP: BASS MUSEUM 2015

MIDDLE: LOOKING NORTH 2015

BELOW: REMNANT OF PRESERVED 1962 MIAMI BEACH
PUBLIC LIBRARY MEETING ROOM in COLLINS PARK taken
during ART BASEL 2014.

UM of ART

ARCHITECTURE

Modern classicism was the framework for the
evolution of modernity in Miami Beach..lt
responded to the practical, technical and even
moral challenges of the International Style by
rationalizing yet maintaining the elements of the
classical language....The severity and order of
the style, which swept America in the 1930,
crystallized the spirit of the era and the sentiment
of the nation.” (11}

The Mlami Beach Library & Art Center designed
by Russell Pancoast in 1930, was Miami Beach's
archetypical modern classical building. The
building was reminiscent of (Architect) Paul
Philippe Cret ' Folger Shakespeare Library...built
one year earlier in 1929 within the monumental
core of Washington D. C. " (12)

“The Mlami Beach Library was..."the
first Deco building on the island.” (13)

Fashioned from native quarry keystone and
incited with bas-relief ornament, the Library had
two wings positioned on either side of a higher
central mass fronted with a monumental entry
loggia. (14)

“Mlami Beach'’s 1930's construction boom was
the catalyst for an important transformation of
ornament into adornment evoking the fantasy of
the tropics.” ...Stylized depictions of plant life,
sunrise, waves and fountains appeared,
complementing the parallel modern tendency
toward purely geometric ornament.” (15)

The most striking ornamentation is the use of
bas-relief panels. Some panels utilize geometric
patterns, others incorporated stylized forms of
tropical birds and plants. In this way, the
buildings reinforced the seaside environment
promoted to visitors. Examples of Art Deco style
buildings within the expanded district include:
Collins Plaza Hotel, South Beach Hotel (originally
named Liberty Arms Hotel) and the Bass Museum
of Art (originally Miami Beach Memorial Library.
(10)

13
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“An excellent example was the series
of three bas-relief panels placed over
the entrance portico of the Miami
Beach Public Library in 1937 by
sculptor Gustav Bohland. Borland,
who also incised the keystone structure
to reveal sculpted seagulls at its
corners, created a triptych that
represented symbols nature and

progress. The center panel featured a
stylized pelican while the other two
represented the discovery of America
and the wonders of modern
transportation and communications: a
ship, an airplane, a train and the
antenna of Miami Beach’s first radio
station, WIOD (wonderful isle of
dreams).” (16)




BASS MUSEUM of ART

Gustav Bohland was also the sculptor for the
stylized concrete seagulls which are featured
emerging at the building corners.
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2002 MUSEUM ADDITION

“A major expansion of the Bass Museum by
Arata Isozaki with Spillls Candela DMJM
Architects was completed in 2002. The
expansions, the first of two planned phases,
maintained the prominence of the
monumental east facade but reoriented the
building toward Park Avenue, with a new
entrance and second level wing projecting
above a ground-level pool and sculpture
garden.” (17)

The magic of the 2002 addition is the manner
in which the historic building retains its
grandeur at the head of Collins Park while
locating the new additions to the west of the
historic building. At the same time the
diagonal siting of the 2002 addition opens up
the corner and brings open space into the
neighborhood all around the building.

ARCHITECTS for the 2100 Collins Building:

RUSSELL T. PANCOAST ARCHITECT
Central Building 1930
South Wing Addition 1937
North Wing Additions 1950

ROBERT SWARTBURG ARCHITECT
Conversion to Museum 1962

ARATA ISOZAK! & ASSOC. ARCHITECTS
Additions & Renovations 2000
A. HERBERT MATHES ARCHITECT
of New Miami Beach Library

constructed in 1962 and
demolished in 2000

MUSEUM

of

ART
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RUSSELL T. PANCOAST ARCHITECT
“Russell T. Pancoast (1889 - 1972) the
grandson of John S. Collins, was born in New

Jersey, joined his family in Miami Beach in 1913

and returned here after earning a degree in
architecture from Cornell in 1922. His wife
Katharine, was a classmate, and for their
honeymoon, they traveled to Spain, italy, and

North Africa to study Mediterranean architecture.
Pancoast worked for Kiehnel & Elliott (Architects),

became manager of their Mlami Beach office in
1924 and started his own practice in 1928. His
first big job was designing the prestigious Surf

BASS MUSEUM

Club in Surfside 1929.” (18)
REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS INCLUDE:

Surf Club, Surfside, Fl

Latin Quarter Nightclub - Palm Island, Miami
Beach (constructed 1934 & demolished 1968)
1638 Collins Avenue - former Greyhound Bus
Station, Miami Beach 1947 (now incorporated
into the facade of the Ballet Valet Garage)
901 Lincoln Road - Mead Building, Lincoln Rd
1928

Carl Fisher Memorial - Alton Road & Lakeview
Drive, Miami Beach 1941

Cushman School - 592 NE 60th Street Miami
1926

Southland Super Service Station @ 1700 SW
22nd Street - Miami - from a prototype by
Russell Pancoast 1938

Miami Beach Community Church Parish Hall -
1620 Drexel Avenue, Miami Beach 1949
Miami Beach Women's Club 2401 Pine Tree
Drive, Miami Beach 1933

North Beach Elementary School - 4100 Prairie
Avenue, Miami Beach 1936 '

Peter Miller Hotel, Miami Beach

Miami Beach Public Library now Bass Museum
of Art, 1930

TOP PHOTO: PETER MILLER HOTEL

MIDDLE PHOTO: PHOTO OF MODEL OF PROPOSED NEW
MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY CHURCH CIRCA 1948 (unbuilt)
LOWER PHOTO: MEAD BUILDING

of

ART
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B. ROBERT SWARTBURG (1895-1975) was born
in New York and educated at Columbia
University, the American Academy in Rome, and
at the Ecole des Beaux Arts in Paris. He moved to
Miami permanently in 1944 from New York and
worked there until his retirement in 1972, In his
35-year career he is said to have designed more
than 1000 buildings. Mr. Swartburg was also an
accomplished artist who painted for pleasure,
and executed murals and sculptures to embellish
his buildings. (26)

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS INCLUDE:

e Garden Bay Manor, New York City

¢ Delano Hotel, Miami Beach

e Civic Center, Miami

o Miami Metro Justice Building, Miami

e Miami Beach Convention Hall, Miami Beach

e Riviera Junior High School, Miami

¢ Ojus Elementary School, Miami

e Sorrento Hotel, Miami Beach

¢ 910 Bay Drive Apartments, Miami Beach

® 960 Bay Drive Apartments, Miami Beach

© 6881 Bay Drive Apartments, Miami Beach

¢ Executive House apartments at 4925 Collins \
e Vagabond Motel, Miami

e Belle Towers, Belle Isle, Miami Beach

e Bass Museum conversion from former Miami
Beach Public Library, 1962

ABOVE: FONTAINEBLEAU HOTEL 2015 WITH NORTH
TOWER by A. HERBERT MATHES in HIGHLIGHTED
PHOTOGRAPH courtesy GOOGLE EARTH

BELOW: DELANO HOTEL by B. ROBERT SWARTBURG

A. HERBERT MATHES (1912-1977) graduated
from New York University in 1937 and came to
Miami Beach in 1944. Previously he had designed
stores for the National Shoe Company, shoe
exhibits at the 1939 New York World's Fair,
packing plants in Kansas and film labs for 20th
Century Fox. During World War Il he designed
ships for the U.S. Navy. In Miami Beach he
designed a number of commercial, residential
and municipal buildings, including many hotels.
(26)

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS INCLUDE:

e Forest Park Gardens in Rye, New York
e Continental Hoel, 4000 Collins Avenue
e Parisian Hotel, 1510 Collins Avenue

e Allison Hotel, 261 Collins Avenue

e Fontainebleau Hotel, North addition 1958
(popularly known as the 'spite wall building’)
o New Mlami Beach Public Library (1962 - 2000)

18
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ARATA ISOZAKI ARCHITECT

Avrata Isozaki (BI& ) was born 23 July 1931 and
is a Japanese architect, teacher and theorist. One
of the leading architects of his generation, he
became an influential proponent of the avant-
garde conceptual approach to architecture that
characterized the New Wave in Japan in the
1970s and after. He studied at the University of
Tokyo under Kenzd Tange and after graduating
(1954) he worked for Kenzé Tange & Urtec until
1963. From 1960 lsozaki began to develop his
own practice first as an architectural designer.

His beginning projects were influenced and
influenced by European experiences with a style
mixed between “"New Brutalism" & "Metabolist
Architecture” (Oita Medical Hall, 1959-1260)
according to Reyner Banham. He then
developed a more eclectic style with buildings
such as: and later developed a modernistic style
with buildings such as the Art Tower of Mito
(1986~90), Domus-Casa del Hombre (1991-1995)
and more.

ABOVE: KITAKYUSHU MUNICIPAL MUSEUM OF ART,
JAPANBELOW: BIBLIOTECA DI MARANELLO, ITALY

He has created a number of various works both
inside and outside Japan. He is considered one
of world's most illustrious architects, winning
many prestigious international awards

Other major projects include:

e Museum of Contemporary Art, Los Angeles, CA

¢ Olympic Stadium, Barcelona, Spain

e Team Disney, Orlando, Florida

e Tokyo University of Art and Design

o Kitakyushu Municipal Museum of Art,
Kitakyushu, Japan 1974

e Oita Medical Center (1960)

o Qita Prefectural Library (1966)

s Oita branch of the Fukuoka Mutual Bank (1967)

e Gunma Prefectural Museum of Modern Art
(1971-1974), Takasaki

e Kitakyushu Municipal Central Library (1972~
1975)

o West Japan General Exhibition Center (1977)
Kitakyushu.

e Fujimi Country Club (1973-74)

e Casals Hall, Chiyoda, Japan

e Nara Centennial Hall, Japan

e Palau Sant Jordi Stadium, Barcelona, Spain
1990

e Kitakyushu Central Library (1973-74)

e Kyoto Concert Hall, Japan

e CityLife Centre, Milan, Italy

e |[CE Krakow Congress Centre, Poland

e Bass Museum of Art, Miami Beach, Florida 2000

19
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1965 AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY SURVEY OF PARTIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD SHOWING THE BASS MUSEUM courtesy
of CITY OF MIAMI BEACH PUBLIC WORKS

20
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THIS MAP WAS PREPARED PREVIOUSLY BY ARTHUR
MARCUS ARCHITECT IN 2013 FOR THE SOUTH BEACH
HOTEL AND NOTES PROMINENT BUILDINGS
SURROUNDING COLLINS PARK AND THE BASS MUSEUM.
MAP COURTESY OF GOOGLE EARTH.

21
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TOP & LOWER PHOTOGRAPHS
COURTESY BASS MUSEUM
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NEIGHBORING

BUILDINGS

Surrounding the Bass
Museum in every
direction around
Collins Park is an
intriguing melange of
noted structures of
different architectural
styles and forms.

TOP RIGHT: ARTECITE at
20th + PARK AVE

TOP LEFT: W HOTEL on
271st STRRET

LOWER RIGHT: PARK
APARTMENTS
on
PARK AVENUE

LOWER LEFT: PLYMOUTH
HOTEL with
ADAMS
HOTEL IN
BACKGROUND.
photo by
STEVEN
BROOKE in
DECO
DELIGHTS 1988
(28)




NEIGHBORING
BUILDINGS

TOP PHOTO: MIAMI BEACH REGIONAL
LIBRARY by ROBERT A. M. STERN
ARCHITECTS, 2004

MIDDLE PHOTO: ADAMS HOTEL by L.
MURRAY DIXON ARCHITECT 1938
courtesy HISTORY MIAMI

LOWER PHOTO: MIAMI CITY BALLET by
ARQUITECTONICA ARCHITECTS, 2000

TOP AND LOWER PHOTOGRAPHS by
ARTHUR MARCUS

BASS

MUSEUM

of ART
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LOWER PHOTO:
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Throughout its existence as both a Library and an
Art Museum, the building has experienced a
continual series of additions to the north, west
and south elevations.

The photo at left is taken standing from the 2000
Isozaki addition looking through the doorway into
one of the western additions to the 1930

Pancoast building - still clad with coral rock stone.

26
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Top + Lower Photos by Arthur Marcus NORTH GALLERY WITH RECENT ART INSTALLATION
Middle Photo courtesy Bass Museum

TOP LOOKING NORTH

LOWER LOOKING SOUTH

27
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Interior View of Colling Memorial

The
JOHN S. COLLINS
MEMORIAL

of the

MIAMI BEACH PUBLIC LIBRARY
and ART CENTRE

COVER OF
THE 4-page
1930
DEDICATION
BOOKLET

for the

MIAMI BEACH
PUBLIC
LIBRARY WITH
INTERIOR
VIEW OF THE
NORTH
GALLERY.

28
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The John S. Collins Memorial

This memorial comprising the south wing of
the Miami Beach Public Library and Art Centre of
Miami Beach, Florida is erected to commemorate
the late John S. Collins, pioneer and early developer
of Miami Beach by his daughter Mrs. Thomas 1.
Pancoast, Chairnan of the Library Board.

Mr Collins was born Decernber 29, 1837 in the
ancestral Quaker home of the Collins family in
Morrestown, New Jersey. The son of a farmer,
he was the sixth generation of his name to live
in this homestead. He grew up with a deep love
of the soil and a creative passion [or making things
grow and produce abundantly. In his early youth

he experimented with growing strawberries commet-
cially, and as a young man of twenty years he was
the proud possessor of a quarter of an acre of ground
all his own, a gift from his father. This land he
slanted half in blackberries and balf in strawberrics
and harvested a profitable crop the first year. His
love of growing things caused him to establish the
Pleasant Valley Nurseries at Morrestown, the profits
from which were used to buy neighboring farms, an
enterprise of considerable value. After much ex-
perience in experimental agriculture he stocked a farm
at Merchantville, New Jersey with his beloved black-
berry plants and it was from these plants that he
popularized the famous Wilson early blackberries in
the markets of Philadelphia and New York. His
early recognition of the Kiefer pears did much to
promotc its acceptance in the east

Mr. Collins was always keenly receptive to new
methods and new ideas, especially machine and labor
saving devices, and in 1888 he became a dealer in
farm machinery and farmer’s supplies. Feeling that
he was getting along in years, he was now ready to
shift a measure of his responsibilities to his son and
son-in-law. Now he found that there was time fo
look for other felds to conquer.

29
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A number of years before he had come to the
financial aid of a group of New Jersey men who
were promoting a fantastic plan to grow coconuts
commercially in Miami Beach. This plan had prov-
en a failure, a fact deeply resented by Mr. Collins
and he now determined to turn that failure into suc-
cess.  In the carly nineties Mr. Collins had first come
to Florida, The railroad had not yet reached Palm
Beach and he preceded the railroad into Miami in
1896 to take the situation over personally. He in-
tended, if the land came up to his expectations, to
develop it according to his own idcas. Two black
men rowed him across Biscayne Bay and for the first
time he sct foot on the soil of Miami Beach. He
admired the location, and after examining the soil
found it good. Things, wonderful things, new
things could be grown in this virgin jungle. That
was for the present, and with the perfect climate,
the sun and the sea, he foresaw that thousands of
people would come to spend the winter here, if given
the opportunity,

There was much work to be done, the jungle
must be cut down, business called him north, proper
control of the land must be obtained, all of these
things caused irritating delays, but finally by 1907
he was ready to go ahead. During the delay he
studied the situation, talked to native farmers and
government plan experts. He sought and found
the unusual fruit with which he wished to experi-
ment. He would plant avocades and while these
grew he would plan the fashionable winter resort of
his dreams.

The Herculean task of clearing the juneles, of
planting orchards, of building canals and bridges for
communication, of interesting others to settle here,
of supplying vision and courage o these who with-
out it would so easily have given up, has truly earned
him the loving title of Father of Miami Beach.

In memory of this vision and this courage. the
John &, Collins Memorial is erected for the citizens
of the city he dreamed.
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JOHN S. COLLINS

THE MEMORIAL IS ERECTED
IN LOVE AND RESPECT FOR
THIS FRIENDLY MAN. MIAMI
BEACH IS A MONUMENT TGO
HIS VISION AND COURAGE.
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1930 RUSSELL
PANCOAST ARCHITECT
WITH ARCHITECT'S
TITLE BLOCK BELOW.
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ABOVE: 1930 - NORTHERN PORTION OF EAST ELEVATION

BELOW: 1930 - SOUTHERN PORTION OF EAST ELEVATION
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1930 - PLAN @ FIRST FLOOR READING ROOM
RUSSELL PANCOAST ARCHITECT
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ABOVE: 1962 NEW MIAMI BEACH PUBLIC LIBRARY by
A.HERBERT MATHES ARCHITECT -
ROOF FRAMING PLAN

BELOW: MEETING ROOM REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
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THE BASS MUSEUM OF ART by ROBERT SWARTBURG
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